
ARIZONA STATE SENATE 

45TH LEGISLATURE 
FIRST REGULAR SESSION 

 
MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 

APPROPRIATIONS 
 

DATE: January 30, 2001   TIME:   8:00 a.m. ROOM: 109 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Solomon VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Bee 

 
ANALYST: 

 
Deborah Johnston 

COMMITTEE  
SECRETARY:   

 
Melissa C. Upshaw 

  

INTERNS:     Timothy Bowers and Julie Myers 
 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator Arzberger X   SB 1243 DP 
Senator Cirillo X     
Senator Guenther  X    
Senator Hamilton X     
Senator Hellon X     
Senator Martin X     
Senator Mitchell X     
Senator Nichols X     
Senator Rios X     
Senator Verkamp X     
Senator Bee, Vice Chairman X     
Senator Solomon, Chairman X     

 
 

GOVERNOR'S APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

2 

Tape 1, Side A 
 
Senator Solomon called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. and attendance was noted. 
 
Attendees Sign in sheet (Attachment A) 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Without objection, the minutes of January 9, 2001 were approved as 
distributed. 

 
BUDGET ADOPTIONS 
 
Senator Solomon announced the adoptions of the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System 
(AHCCCS) and Department of Corrections (DOC) budgets will be held until next week.  Senator 
Martin, Chair of the Criminal Justice & Transportation Subcommittee has requested to hold the 
adoption of the DOC budget due to negotiations taking place for the State prison.  Senator Martin 
said the DOC budget would appear before the subcommittee on Friday. 
  
With regard to the AHCCCS budget, Senator Solomon asked the members to recall Director 
Phyllis Biedess' testimony last week as she spoke on the need to have some parity for direct care 
AHCCCS workers with other direct care workers for whom they tend to provide increases in the 
biennial budget.   Senator Solomon gave her word to Director Biedess that the Committee would 
look for a place in the budget to find some money so that she would be able to compete with other 
direct care service providers who are looking for contracts with the State.  Some places have been 
identified, but they need to resolve this with the Director along with two other issues that were 
brought to the attention of the Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC). 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
S.B. 1243 - appropriations; highway patrol - DO PASS 
 
Nadine Sapien, Transportation Analyst, explained S.B. 1243 is an emergency measure that 
appropriates approximately $26 million to the Department of Public Safety (DPS) over the 
biennium for full-time employees (FTE), overtime expenditures, and highway patrol vehicles from 
the Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF).  She stated that a fiscal note has been requested from 
JLBC to determine the impact of the appropriation from the HURF to the local communities. 
 
Colonel Dennis Garrett, Director, Arizona DPS, said he appreciates the opportunity to speak on 
this important bill.  Director Garrett indicated that from 1990 to 1999 there were 50 freeway miles 
added in the Phoenix area alone.  By 2003, 56 additional miles are scheduled to open.  The 
increased responsibilities of these additional miles have been addressed with an increase of only 
four highway patrol officers.  He explained that the Department uses a police allocation model that 
was developed by the Northwestern Traffic Institute, which is considered one of the premiere traffic 
management institutes in the United States.  The model was used to help identify the State's 
highway patrol staffing needs, such as the number of traffic accidents, violations, traffic counts, 
roadway miles, desired patrol intervals, and administrative responsibilities.  He pointed out that 
there has been a 50 percent increase in accidents on the Phoenix area highways, and a 37 
percent increase in the number of miles in the last five years alone.  DPS projects their highway 
patrol deficit will be between 180 and 200 officers by the end of 2003, but recognizing the difficulty 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

3 

in hiring that many officers, they have worked with the Governor's office and feel that hiring 116 
officers over the next two years is a realistic and attainable figure.  He said as far as the overtime is 
concerned, the highway patrol has not received an increase in overtime since 1988.  At that time, 
$834,100 was appropriated for overtime compensatory pay, which is equal to a little over 3 percent 
of the highway patrol's salary and benefit package.  Currently, that same amount of overtime is 
less than 2 percent of DPS' base, and that is cutting their ability to manage the operation.  He said 
because the department is a 24 hour 7 day a week operation, many officers work non-business 
hours.  They go to court in an off-duty capacity because the courts are not open when the officers 
are on duty.  Under the fair labor standards act, the officers have to be compensated with money 
or time off.  He explained that DPS does not have the money to pay the officers overtime, 
therefore, they have to give them time off, which exaggerates their problem of not having enough 
officers on the road.  He said this means that on the fourth or fifth workday of the week, many 
officers are off duty because they have to give them compensatory time off.  
 
Director Garrett added that one of the most important tools available to a highway patrol officer is 
his or her vehicle that is equivalent to their office.  DPS’ mission is to provide a safe operating 
environment to the public on the highways, to interdict criminal activity, support other criminal 
justice agencies, and rapidly respond to any civil emergencies.  All of this is very much dependent 
upon having reliable transportation.  Currently, the highway patrol fleet has 820 vehicles that have 
an average of 20,000 driven miles/year.  As of September 2000, 38 percent of their fleet or 316 
highway patrol vehicles exceeded 80,000 miles.  In addition, 25.1 percent of their fleet or 206 
highway patrol vehicles had an excess of 100,000 miles.  He pointed out that every year, at least 
160 vehicles or 20 percent of their fleet should be replaced based on a five-year, 100,000 mile 
replacement schedule.  The appropriate level of replacement vehicles in recent years has not 
provided sufficient units to maintain the 20 percent turnover rate.  Should the Department be 
successful in obtaining these vehicles by the end of 2003 there will be 84 vehicles in their fleet that 
will have over 100,000 miles.  He stated that DPS does have records to show that as these 
vehicles go over the 100,000 miles, their maintenance costs go up dramatically.  There is an issue 
of officer safety in driving a car on the freeway with that many miles.    
 
Senator Cirillo said he is very supportive and will vote in favor of the bill.  He said with all this in the 
budget, what would be done to DPS' budget or how will all this be deleted?  Senator Solomon said 
it is her understanding that the Committee is able to back this out of the budget without much 
difficulty.  Senator Cirillo suggested that the Committee accept JLBC's recommendation with these 
deletions and delete what was passed on the bill. 
 
Senator Cirillo addressed a situation that occurred three years ago regarding the State’s fleet.  He 
said that non-patrol officers were getting vehicles with 10,000 to 20,000 miles on them.  It was felt 
that non-patrol officers should get vehicles that are being phased out with 80,000 to 100,000 miles.  
He asked if this was cleared up and if there was policy in place so that this would not happen 
again.  Director Garrett said DPS' policy is to issue an officer with a new car and he or she will 
keep the car until it has reached 100,000 miles.  He said DPS is no longer giving certain people 
get the newer vehicles every year and they roll the cars down.   
 
Senator Arzberger said that last night she spoke with a father of two DPS officers.  He told her that 
the officers keep their engines running nearly all the time, so the vehicle actually accumulates a lot 
of hours, which are not indicated on the mileage meter.  She suggested that airplanes have hour 
meters that indicate the actual hours on the vehicles, and that perhaps the DPS vehicles should be 
replaced with a lower mileage because the vehicles may have up to 25 percent more time on the 
engines. 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

4 

 
Director Garrett said Senator Arzberger's comment is correct because of the electronics in the car, 
the lights, and the radios especially out in the rural areas where it is critically important, the officers 
need instantaneous communication and that requires keeping the engines running.  Even though 
the vehicles may have 100,000 miles on them, that engine may have been running equivalent to 
125,000 to 150,000 miles. 
 
Senator Nichols said he had a chance to discuss this yesterday and did not see a problem with it.  
He questioned whether or not any of these vehicles might be used for motorist assistance because 
he had discussed the program briefly, what it would mean in terms of public relations for DPS.  He 
realizes that DPS has some services out there that has been invisible to him since he has been 
driving the highways over the last several years.  He asked Director Garrett if he has thought about 
expanding his motorist assistance program. 
 
Director Garrett said DPS has thought about the expansion and has entered a partnership in 
agreement with Maricopa Association of Government (MAG) to which they have paid for 8 fully 
equipped vans that are out on the road now primarily for Maricopa County.  In Pima County, DPS 
has a group of volunteers who use some of their old equipment for the same purpose.  Throughout 
the State, DPS has volunteers that assist their officers in the motorists' assist program.  He said 
Senator Nichols is correct, DPS needs to expand the program, which he believes is a tremendous 
public relation tool as well as a useful program for the motoring public.  He also believes there will 
be an increase seen in the years to come. 
 
Senator Nichols commented that there is an old saying, "that when you are stuck on the highway 
you never see a DPS officer, but when you are speeding you see one immediately."  He said that 
this goes to say that there are not as many officers out there as they would like to have.  In relation 
to this, he recalls being approached by a group called the Arizona Rangers, a group that wanted to 
volunteer time and use their skills where they were able to do so.  Senator Nichols said he realizes 
this might be a somewhat sensitive issue, but asked Director Garrett if he could comment on 
whether or not the Arizona Rangers could fit into DPS' expanded program. 
  
Director Garrett said he is somewhat familiar with the Arizona Rangers, and that of course DPS 
could use any volunteer help that they can get.  He explained DPS' criterion would be applied to 
have the volunteers properly trained before anyone is put out on a busy freeway, making sure the 
volunteers assist DPS in relieving problems and not creating more problems.  With proper training 
he said they would be more than happy to sit down and talk to them about it. 
 
Senator Nichols said the percentage of DPS' budget that comes from HURF would be no less than 
it has been in past years.  He asked Director Garrett if he could comment on whether there has 
been any objection from other recipients of HURF about DPS support coming out of HURF to this 
degree. 
 
Director Garrett said he has talked to the City of Phoenix, the Arizona League of Cities and Towns, 
and several mayors throughout the greater Phoenix area.  The cities have all said they support it.  
The League supports DPS in getting the officers, but are going to stand quiet on the funding.  He 
said one of the benefits of receiving the additional officers, is that when DPS opens up a freeway, 
the relief on the main arterial of the cities is almost instant and dramatic.  He said a good case is 
Pima, Hayden and Scottsdale roads on the East side, the roads were almost in gridlock literally 16 
hours a day and once the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) opened up the 101 
freeway, the flow of traffic is what it should be and is what the city engineers originally designed it 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

5 

to be.  He said this is seen every time a stretch of freeway is opened.  On the West Side, 99th 
Avenue is now back to its normal flow of traffic, and as soon as they get the 101 freeway on the 
northern part of Phoenix, he thinks the same thing will occur on Bell, Union Hills and Beardsley 
roads.  
 
Senator Martin said that he has looked at this legislation because it does some of his work for him 
as Chair of Criminal Justice & Transportation Subcommittee.  He believes that 100 percent of the 
highway patrol was paid from HURF dollars as early as 1991.  From his understanding and 
research, in an effort to speed up the freeways they started to supplant those with general fund 
dollars.  Now the freeways are built and that is why more officers are being requested.  In 
discussion with ADOT, Director Mary Peters said that this should have a negligible impact on the 
remaining portions of freeway.  In addition, Ms. Peters said that historically 100 percent of the 
funding was out of HURF.  He said this takes us from 53 percent to 60 percent, so it is only a 7 
percent change in the way their money is being funded.  As a result of looking at this beforehand, 
he is actually supporting the bill. 
 
With regard to Senator Nichols' question, Senator Solomon said that Article IX, Section 14 of the 
Constitution specifically states that the monies that are deposited in HURF should be used for the 
expenses of State enforcement, traffic laws, and state administration of safety programs.  
Therefore, we are living within the Constitution and this is a very appropriate use of this money. 
 
Senator Rios said he knows there is a big need for freeway miles in the urban areas.  He asked 
Director Garrett whether or not any of these officers were designated to Pima County or rural parts 
of the State. 
 
Director Garrett said yes, in the second year, DPS has officers going into the rural areas.  He said 
one of the things that DPS looked at before they put this package together was their allocation of 
manpower throughout the State.  In 1997 and 1998, the department received 60 officers from the 
Legislature and the Governor's office with the instruction that the officers had to go to the rural 
areas.  Therefore, DPS is hoping to bring all of the three areas, Metro Tucson, Metro Phoenix, and 
the outlying areas together and have their deficit of officers equal.  He said this would be about a 7 
percent deficit when DPS gets through with this particular program. 
 
Senator Rios accepted Director Garrett's response and commented that nobody ever has enough, 
so he will leave it at that. 
 
To that point, Senator Cirillo said Director Garrett mentioned that there is a statistical method that 
DPS uses to calculate how many officers are needed.  He asked if this same system is used in 
rural and urban Arizona. 
 
Director Garrett said the same system is used.  The system, which was developed by the 
Northwestern University Traffic Institute, factors all of that in and because of the increase in the last 
five years in freeway miles in the greater Phoenix area and the population increase in both 
Maricopa and Pima County, this has caused the formula to show a greater need in those areas 
right now. 
 
Senator Cirillo asked if the same system is used so that there is equal treatment, and that there is 
nothing built into the system that would say to the rural areas, “you are going to get less.”  Director 
Garrett said that is correct. 
 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

6 

In response to points made by Senator Solomon and Senator Martin, Senator Verkamp said that 
there were several of them who were opposed to switching the highway patrol funding from HURF 
to the general fund.  He said in his opinion part of the reason there is a deficit is because rather 
than using HURF money for this purpose, the money has been taken out of the general fund.  
Since the general fund is always in a “crunch,” gradually DPS has been cut back.  Senator 
Verkamp said he is one who has always supported using all of that money for DPS.  He asked 
Director Garrett if he believes the movement that Senator Martin talked about in trying to remove 
that funding from HURF and switching it to the general fund had an impact on DPS' deficit of 
officers and vehicles. 
 
Director Garrett said yes, during his limited time with DPS, he did some research on the matter 
because he knew when he was coming onto the job that there was a serious shortage of 
manpower on the State's highways.  Knowing that the Constitution permits the funding of highway 
patrols out of HURF, in fact, in the past it had been funded up to 100 percent.  He does feel that 
over the last five to ten years with the tightness in the general fund resources and the fact that they 
tried to get highway patrol funded out of that, it has led DPS to the shortage.  He commented that if 
DPS had been allowed to stay in HURF all along, he would not be asking for 116 FTE's, it would 
be a much smaller number.   
 
Senator Solomon announced the following were present in support of the bill: Joseph Easton, 
Program Manager/Legislation & Policy, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission; Rick Knight, 
Lieutenant, DPS; Bill Reuiter, Lieutenant Colonel, DPS; Andy Swann, Legislative Liaison, 
representing the Associated Highway Patrolmen of Arizona; and George Weisz, Executive 
Assistant to Governor Hull.  
 

Senator Bee moved S.B. 1243 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote 10-0-2.  (Attachment # 1) 

 
BUDGET PRESENTATION ON THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
 
Steve Schimpp, Budget Analyst, JLBC, distributed a handout entitled FY 2002 - FY 2003 
Comparison of Major Policy Issues Department of Education (Attachment B) dated January 25, 
2001.  He explained he would be referring to this handout during his presentation. Mr. Schimpp 
highlighted the following major policy issues for the Arizona Department of Education (ADE). 
 

• Total Budget (ADE - 1) 
• Summary (ADE - 3) 
• Enrollment Growth (ADE - 14) 
• Net Assessed Valuation (ADE - 16) 
• Inflation Adjustment (ADE - 17) 
• Additional School Days (ADE - 17) 
• Truth in Taxation (ADE - 18) 
• Special Education Weights (ADE - 18) 
• Endowment Earnings (ADE - 19) 
• Classroom Site fund (ADE - 23) 
• School Accountability (ADE - 24) 
• Other (ADE - 25) 
• Achievement Testing (ADE - 7) 
• SAIS Development (ADE - 9) 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

7 

• Additional Sate Aide (ADE - 21) 
• Other Formula Programs (ADE - 22) 
• New Staff (ADE - 10) 
• State Board of Education & miscellaneous (ADE - 11, 26, & 28) 

 
*Note: The page numbers in parentheses refer to the page numbers listed in the FY2002-FY2003 
JLBC Recommendations booklet. 
 
In reference to Net Assessed Valuation, Mr. Schimpp said JLBC assumes there will be a savings 
of about $84 million because of a 7 percent growth in property values locally.  In the second year, 
there is an assumption of about $150 million due to an additional 5 percent growth in that second 
year.  To this point, Senator Cirillo asked how does Truth in Taxation affect this line.  He said he 
thought that with Truth in Taxation, if the assessed valuations went up then the school boards had 
to justify why they were not lowering the tax rate.  
 
Mr. Schimpp said Truth in Taxation, as Senator Cirillo mentioned, has the goal of keeping 
individual property tax bills the same, year to year.  If the value of the property goes up the tax 
rates would have to be adjusted downward.  If a tax bill is $1000 the first year, it will be $1000 in 
the second year.  He said this is the global goal of that program.  However, the way that it actually 
operates, in order to operate perfectly there would have to be a separate tax rate for each 
individual tax property in the whole State, which is far too complicated.   Therefore, the local tax 
rates for schools are lowered on a global basis and everybody pays that globally lower tax rate 
instead.  It may be enough to lower taxes or it may not depending on what is happening with their 
own property.  In addition, Truth in Taxation only applies to current existing properties, it does not 
apply to new construction.  JLBC's numbers assume that Truth in Taxation would be applied as 
required under the law, but we would still get a saving because of new construction.  Mr. Schimpp 
clarified that the reduction in rates is built in on a global basis.   
 
Senator Cirillo said that one of the main differences between JLBC and OSPB is the estimate of 
how much revenue we are going to get in the sales tax.  He asked if these numbers are consistent 
with the difference in the total revenue projection between JLBC and the Executive.  Mr. Schimpp 
said that JLBC assumes 8 percent globally and 8 percent for Proposition 301, noting that this is 
sales tax only.  The Executive is 7.2 percent on Proposition 301, but he is not sure on their global 
estimate and what their assumption is.   
 
Senator Cirillo said he would hold his question for the State Superintendent, but he is glad to see 
that one of the measurements is the percent of parents who rate A+ for public schools that their 
highest school age child attends.  However, it is a little disturbing, unless the zero is missing, in 
that the goal is 8 percent, which does not seem to be very aggressive.  
 
Senator Nichols asked if he understood Mr. Schimpp say that charter schools had a higher per 
capita cost than the other public schools.  Mr. Schimpp said that is correct, this is only on a formula 
basis, and the charter schools are not eligible for participation in Students First. Mr. Schimpp said 
that on page ADE - 15 of JLBC’s recommendation booklet, there is some discussion of that issue.  
Next year, JLBC estimates that per pupil amount on average for districts would be $4,156 and for 
charter schools it is about $5,214, so the difference is about $1,000.   He explained that part of that 
is because when Students First was first implemented there was $400 that was added to the 
charter formula.  He is not sure what the rationale is behind that, but possibly it was because the 
charters were being disqualified for Students First monies.  Also, some monies from the old ABC 
program were rolled in, about $146 for elementary and $212 for high school, so that explains $500 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

8 

to $600 of the difference.  Since charter schools tend to be smaller and qualify at a higher rate for 
the small school weights than districts qualify for, this leaves the remaining portion.  He said if this 
is all rolled together the difference is about $1,000. 
 
Senator Nichols thanked Mr. Schimpp for the explanation.  He said he had always thought that 
charter schools were operating more efficiently and cheaply for the State.  They certainly did not 
have to carry some of the obligations that the other public schools have to carry, in terms of special 
education programs.   
 
With respect to Endowment Savings, Senator Nichols asked Mr. Schimpp what the State was 
offsetting.  Mr. Schimpp said the State is offsetting the cost of Basic State Aid, something that has 
been done as long as he could remember.  The total offset that is assumed in the JLBC 
recommendation and OSPB is $75 million in fiscal years 2002 and 2003.   
 
Senator Nichols said if he understands this correctly that the endowment income from our State 
Land Trust is offsetting the general fund money.  He asked if this was the purpose of the State 
Land Trust to relieve the general fund.  Mr. Schimpp said he could only assume the intent since he 
was not there when it was created. 
 
Senator Solomon asked if it had been the purpose of the State Land Trust to support public 
education.  She said she would make the argument that that is exactly what it is doing.   She would 
also make the argument, commenting that the State does not get the biggest bang for their buck 
from the State Land Trust, that it would be in Legislature's best interest and the best interest of the 
kids in school to look at how those State Trust Land revenues can be maximized.  
 
In response to Senator Solomon's comments, Senator Nichols said his concern is that it does not 
help out education if general fund dollars are backed out every time an additional dollar is received 
from the land trust.  He said it is technically correct that it is used for education, but by displacing 
general fund money.  It is not advancing education, and as a teacher, Senator Solomon would 
share this perception. 
 
Senator Solomon said she really does not because she never viewed this as backing out general 
fund, instead it was always viewed as part of that pot of monies available for base level support.  
She suggested that perhaps public education is not supported in the manner that it should, but in 
this budget with Proposition 301 monies they are increasing the education appropriation by 20 
percent, 6 percent general fund, and 11 percent Proposition 301.  She thinks the State is starting 
to accept its responsibility.   
 
Senator Nichols said he applauds the budget and it has been a tremendous improvement over 
past budgets.  On the failing schools issue, Senator Nichols said he has heard a lot about this over 
the last few years in this Legislature.  He asked how many failing schools had been found.  Mr. 
Schimpp said none at this point under Proposition 301, because the department has not yet fully 
developed a profile that is required to determine who is a member of that group.  He said changes 
in Proposition 301's format for determining who is considered a failing school would be 
recommended.   
 
Senator Nichols said he realizes that Proposition 301 just passed, but that was not the beginning 
of discussion of failing schools.  He is interested to see what situation these failing schools are in 
and what the reason is for their failure.  He said he would be very curious to see how many of them 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

9 

are located in economically disadvantaged areas that contain ethnic minority students.  Then the 
reasons for the failure could be discussed. 
 
Senator Solomon asked if she was correct in saying that there was nothing in the language of the 
Proposition that called for solution teams.  Mr. Schimpp said he would have to consult with what 
the language literally said, and that there was something in there conveying the idea that the State 
would send some people to help out whenever. 
 
Senator Solomon expressed her concern that there should be some sensitivity on what these 
teams are called who will be assisting.  Mr. Schimpp said the terminology would be changed for 
the adoption. 
 
Senator Hellon said the Group B students are a particular concern to her, and asked what 
percentage of students in the public schools fall under Group B.  To her it seems that number and 
the State's responsibility is growing, and the State is not keeping up with it.  She said that JLBC 
does address this in the budget, but refers back to a 1999 study.   She pointed out that this is a 
huge federal burden that is put on the schools in order to help the Group B students, and money is 
often taken out of other areas of the Legislature's budgets.  Senator Hellon wants to make sure 
that the State is meeting that responsibility.   
 
Mr. Schimpp said we assume in our budgets that Group B counts would grow roughly 5 percent 
per year.  They are growing faster than the overall population.  The overall weighted count is 
roughly 20 percent above the unweighted counts.  Some of that is for things like K-3, but the total 
special population is in the 15 percent range. 
 
Senator Rios said he does not see JLBC or the Executive office addressing some concerns that 
were addressed by Alfredo Marcus, a Tucson federal judge, who made some reference to the 
State shortchanging Limited English Proficient Pupils (LEP) students over the years, an issue that 
this Legislature needed to address.  He asked if this is something to be concerned about. 
  
Mr. Schimpp said one thing he did not bring up, that was left out due for the sake of detail, was the 
breakout for ADE supplemental.  He referenced page ADE - 28 of JLBC's recommendation 
booklet, supplemental breakdown that included the $200,000 for the cost study for English 
learners.  He said admittedly there is no new funding in terms of increasing the LEP weight, but it 
is in the budget.  At the time the cost study was not completed and it is a major policy issue.  For 
major decisions like this, JLBC consults with the Chair members and gives guidance, but part of 
the rationale for not including the additional monies, in terms of raising Group B weights, is 
deferred to members at large for further dialogue. 
 
Senator Rios said he would accept Mr. Schimpp's response for now. 
 
Senator Solomon said she would remind the members that we do have some "set asides" in the 
budget.  
 
Senator Solomon asked Mr. Schimpp if he could speak briefly on the testing issue as she has had 
discussion on this issue with the State Superintendent.  As she and Representative Knaperek have 
chosen testing in grades 3-12, she has not supported the testing of First graders.  As one who has 
given first grade testing for a number of years, and has worked with special needs kids and with 
the testing coordinator for her school, she believes the results from the expensive tests are not 
very beneficial.  However, there is a difference of opinion between Senator Solomon and the State 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

10

Superintendent.  With regard to Proposition 203 and the possible need to start testing in grades 2 
to 12, she asked Mr. Schimpp how much more would it cost to test these grades.  She also asked 
what the costs would be, If as a matter of policy, the Body decided to test grades 1-12.  
 
Mr. Schimpp said to test at grade 2, it would be about $266,000 the first year and about $286,000 
the second year.  The additional cost for 1st graders is about $75,000 for both fiscal years. 
 
Dawn Nazary, Budget Analyst, OSPB, distributed a handout entitled Department of Education FY 
20002/2003 Budget Recommendations Select Policy Issues (Attachment D).  She stated that she 
appreciated Mr. Schimpp's thoroughness in explaining the JLBC and OSPB budget 
recommendation as it made her job a bit easier this morning.  While the Executive and JLBC are in 
agreement on several key issues, Ms. Nazary addressed a few areas in which the Executive 
position differs from JLBC. 
 
Ms. Nazary briefed the Committee on the following major policy issues for ADE: 
 

• Group B Weights 
• K-3 Weights 
• FY 2001 AIMS Supplemental 
• Achievement Testing 
• Arizona Instrument to Measure Standards (AIMS) Intervention and Dropout prevention 
• A+ Accountability Measures 
• Youth Support Research 
• State Board of Education - State Agency 

 
Ms. Nazary pointed out that the Governor has not made a specific recommendation concerning 
LEP weight adjustments in her proposed budget, but she believes the concerns raised by the 
Flores case will require action.  Her recommendation will be contingent upon the outcome of the 
cost study required by the court.  As it stands now, the emergency RFP has been issued and bids 
are due on February 3rd.  The Department of Education has received preliminary indication that 
there is interest in undertaking the project and the completion timeline has been set for April 23rd.   
 
With regard to the 2 percent deflation factor in Group B weights, Senator Nichols understands that 
the 2 percent is to cover inflation and will provide additional resources to the schools based upon 
inflationary needs, which they will have to meet.  The Group B weights are to provide the schools 
with additional support for students who may cost more to take care of.   Ms. Nazary said both of 
these were correct. 
 
To answer Senator Nichols' questions, Ms. Nazary said she has heard similar representations 
about the deficient Group B weights that exist now and the need to increase those simply to cover 
existing costs.   The Executive office is proposing that the Group B weight increases are used to 
meet inflationary costs.  These are existing expenses that are part of educating a Group B child, 
and that result from increases in instructional salaries and all of the accompanying operating 
expenses.  The Executive office believes that the intent of the 2 percent is to meet inflationary 
increase.  
 
Senator Nichols said his understanding of the issue was that inflationary adjustments were to 
provide the schools with the resources they needed to meet their increased costs.  He believes it 
was agreed that the Group B weights were already underfunded and more support was needed.  
To take the inflationary amount that the schools get and to use that to increase Group B weights 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

11

seems like saying, "we are not going to give you the money for inflation because we are going to 
be using it in Group B weights."  He said that maybe he is missing something here. 
 
Ms. Nazary said the Governor is dedicating 90 percent of the 2 percent to base level increases in 
the first year.  Of the $66 million that is generated by this 2 percent, $60 million will go to increase 
per pupil spending that equates to about $55 per child.  OSPB is allocating the remaining 10 
percent to Group B.  The Governor believes that she is meeting both of those needs by including 
the needs of the entire population as well as the Group B students. 
 
Senator Nichols said that perhaps the Governor could explain this to him a little bit more clearly so 
that he could understand it.  With regard to the A+ Accountability Measures, Senator Nichols asked 
if the OSPB budget, as opposed to the JLBC budget, would save $10 million, $5 million per year 
over the biennium, by eliminating the accountability measures.  Ms. Nazary said that is correct. 
 
To that point, Senator Solomon said she understands that the money being distributed is not 
based on any accountability.  Ms. Nazary said the dollars associated with that program are 
distributed on a formula basis, and right now every participating school district gets a portion of 
those dollars. 
 
Senator Nichols said his point is to find out where these monies are going and how they are 
currently being used.  He said that perhaps the State Superintendent or the representatives of the 
schools could comment further on this.  As the $10 million is taken away, which the Executive 
office is apparently proposing, he questioned if this would have an impact on the schools.  Rather 
than taking the $10 million away, he suggested that the money be put into Group B weights, if it is 
not being used for anything else.  
 
Senator Arzberger said that JLBC's recommendation is to increase all special education Group B 
weights to cost study levels in fiscal year 2002.  She asked Mr. Schimpp if in his opinion the 
Executive recommendation would meet that desired goal.  Mr. Schimpp said the Executive would 
use the same weights but they would phase them over two years.  But they take money that the 
Committee would otherwise have as unrestricted money and devote part of that money to the 
Group B weights.  In a "nutshell" there is $30 million in additional money over the two years for this 
as a separately funded issue. So OSPB does not provide monies above and beyond Proposition 
301 to fund that issue, whereas JLBC does. 
 
In response to Senator Arzberger's question, Senator Solomon said she and Representative 
Knaperek believe that the State is obligated to give 2 percent for the first six years.  For the last 
decade, she said the State has not fully funded, or sometimes not funded at all, inflation for public 
schools.  Their loss with regard to meeting their inflationary cost is well over $200 million.  She 
assumes that people went to the polls believing that this would be 2 percent inflation for the 
general education budget, which has been supplementing the special education budget for many 
years. Many of the members believe that taking the inflation money that the public thought would 
go into regular education and putting it into special education is not keeping the faith of the people.   
 
Senator Arzberger agreed with Senator Solomon's comments by stating that the State has been 
remiss in its responsibility.  She also wants to make sure the Committee is not remiss, if the costs 
in Group B grow at an inflationary rate greater than 2 percent.   
 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

12

Senator Solomon said she and Representative Knaperek have put into place a review of special 
education funding that would be done by the subcommittee that Senator Arzberger sits on for 
education during the interim. 
 
Senator Solomon added that she and Ms. Nazary have had this discussion twice, with regard to 
the Governor's position on this issue.  Just as she understands the Governor's position, she hopes 
that the Governor understands the position of the members of this body.  Senator Solomon said 
she would not want to face her constituents and tell them that she knows what they wanted better 
than they do, commenting that "big brother" is taking care of them. 
 
Lisa Graham Keegan, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, thanked the Committee for 
being present before them to testify.  She apologized to Mr. Schimpp for misrepresenting the cost 
for testing 1st graders. The cost of grade 1 is $250,000 in fiscal year 2001 and $266,000 in fiscal 
year 2002. 
 
Senator Solomon said she understands that even though it is not a fixed cost, in subsequent years 
there will still be costs for the 1st grade test because of some changes that need to be made. No 
test numbers stay fixed, it starts at $3.41 per pupil the first year, $3.59 the following year, and 
$3.78 the next year.  Those tests are consumable and are not inexpensive. 
 
Senator Solomon asked how these costs compare to the costs of producing the test for grade 4, 5 
or 6.  Ms. Keegan asked the members to keep in mind that this test is the Stanford 9, which we do 
not produce, but is simply given.  The per pupil price in grades 3-11 is $2.50 as opposed to $3.41 
and that is in fiscal year 2001.  They have proposed we will only give the Stanford 9 through grade 
9 and not in grades 10 and 11. 
 
Senator Solomon asked about the issue that Mr. Schimpp raised with regard to Proposition 203.  
Ms. Keegan said they have asked for clarification from the Attorney General.  She said the 
Department believes that the intent of Proposition 203 is to ensure that old students have the 
opportunity for testing every year and that we should not have to give Proposition 203 kids more 
tests than we give anybody else.  Senator Solomon said the Committee would await that opinion. 
 
Ms. Keegan addressed some priority issues.  She stated that the achievement testing is very 
important to the State and is considered one of the most important jobs of the State Board of 
Education, and the Department acting on behalf of the State Board.  The Department's changes in 
cost related to discoveries made about the test.  The testing business is experiencing a "boom, " 
with very few companies that do the testing and a lot of states wanting to do it now.  She said the 
Department feels fortunate that they have negotiated them down in a number of instances.  The 
test was changed so that it could be turned around more quickly, more information could be 
brought to parents in the reports, and the test itself was changed to make it consumable.  Children 
in the third grade can now write directly on the booklet and not have to transfer onto answer 
sheets. Ms. Keegan said this is a good number of changes, and money is being requested.  She 
has spoken to the Chair about how they go about pursuing the supplemental.  The Department 
feels it is an important responsibility that they have, and there would be most happy to receive the 
funding in the budget.  Ms. Keegan stated that she is more than happy to defend that in a bill and 
talk to members about why this is so important.  
 
Ms. Keegan said there are two sets of test measurements.  First the Stanford 9 norm reference 
test, which is given every year and allows the Department to gauge progress of schools. She 
thinks a successful school is one in which students are moving, and there is progress.  She said 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

13

this is a huge issue for the President right now when he says the government is not going to leave 
any child behind.  Arizona is ahead of the "eight ball" on this as every child has been tested every 
year in at least grades 3-8, which has been the federal requirement since 1997.  It gives the 
Department a huge amount of information about growth, called "measures of academic progress," 
which is available on their website.  It takes a look at those students who have been with the 
school for a year, so that a school is not credited or blamed for those who come in a month before 
testing.  That is why it is important to have the Stanford 9 test every year.  The Department 
recommended adding the first grade reading test only because they are not satisfied with the 
number of students who are proficient in reading by the end of second and third grade.  They also 
do not have a growth measure between first and second grade.  The schools were informed that 
the first graders would be tested, and samples of the test were given to them. Ms. Keegan said 
there are strong opinions both ways on this, so they obviously have to work through that. When 
they did not have uniform statewide testing they had propensity in lower income areas to have a 
lower standard and to have student grades higher for less performance, which is not good for 
those kids.  This is the Department's main concern.   
 
Senator Solomon said this has been discussed with Ms. Keegan and understands her rationale for 
first graders, but they do have a difference of opinion.  She asked Ms. Keegan if she could make 
the same argument for what progress is being made from Kindergarten to first grade. She said the 
Department felt that first grade was soon enough for the State, but the argument could absolutely 
be made.  With regard to the State's standards, Ms. Keegan believes the State would have to 
develop its own test for Kindergarten that lines up with the State's standards.  There are schools 
that have uniform testing in Kindergarten.  The Stanford 9 may have a K-test but not one that she 
is aware of.  She said the State does have an early primary test.   
 
Senator Solomon asked what would the cost be as to developing a system wide first grade test to 
measure progress.  Ms. Keegan said this is a good question that she does not have an answer to, 
but she will get the answer for her. 
 
Ms. Keegan continued by saying that they are very happy with the information that is available to 
schools, teachers, and the State right now.  Valid information tells us the students are improving.  
She believes the teachers deserve a great deal of credit.  In Pima County, 80 percent of the 
students passed the writing test, commenting that the tests are not easy and were not meant to be.  
 
Ms. Keegan explained the Student Accountability Information System (SAIS) is simply a way to 
track both money and academics online.  It uses current technology to satisfy the need to get away 
from paper and ledgers and go online with ongoing information about schools.  To answer Senator 
Nichols' question about how much money is available for charters and for traditional public 
schools, it is actually quite equivalent. She informed the members that the Department's maroon 
books, which they should have received, have information about how much money is in every 
school.  Every school in Arizona is depicted in terms of revenue and expenditure, which is required 
by a law that was passed two years ago.  Charter schools count as a district so they often qualify 
for the small school weight and huge differences will be seen.  SAIS tracks financial and academic 
information, and can identify the progress of students who are taught under a specific phonics 
technique within the State.  In Arizona, students move from school to school quite frequently.  She 
said it would be nice to be able to track students' academic progress. The system has been up and 
operating since July of last year.  It does work and they simply need to maintain it.  
 
The next priority issue is unfunded by JLBC, the Governor has added $500,000.  Ms. Keegan 
expressed her concern about the dropout rate in Arizona, and she is especially concerned about 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

14

whether the State knows how to solve this problem.  The State has some very effective programs 
for identifying students early on and staying with them, which is relatively inexpensive.  She said 
the Department is requesting $5 million, and there is a House bill for about $2.5 million for a 
specific program, called Jobs for America's Graduates. She indicated that over 90 percent of the 
kids who come to them get through school, and about 85 percent of them go on to higher 
education or into jobs.  Considering those remarkable figures it seems "crazy" to her that the State 
knows this can be done and does not do it.  She stated that the Department will be advocating in 
favor of any bills that address those issues by any organization that can prove that kind of a 
record.   
 
With regard to solution teams, Ms. Keegan said performance profiles are due as of October.  She 
wants to make sure everyone understands that the Department will be asking for some changes.  
The way that the law reads, in her opinion, is overly simplistic.  And when you run those figures as 
you may have seen in the paper, you come up with a huge number of schools that are failing.  She 
said she believes it is important to clearly define what a failing school is.  The essence of 
Proposition 301 was to expect schools to be better next year than they were the year before.  The 
way that Proposition 301 is stated makes it possible for a school to improve a little bit one year, 
and if they do not make that same improvement in the following year they will fail.  Even though 
they may have made a great deal of progress, they are competing against themselves.  She said 
the Department argued against this when it was being written and wanted something that was 
more statistically sound. The Department will be making recommendations to the Legislature for 
changes in Proposition 301, so that the State does not end up with what she calls "false positives" 
that are really "false negatives." The Department takes this measure very seriously, as they do 
testing, because a lot of statistical analyses are used.  The tests, that are expensive at times, are 
statistically sound, as is true for the performance profiles.  She believes it would be a tragedy for 
the State to come out in favor of strong accountability, which is the right thing, and to get it wrong.  
Along the same line, the timing for performance pay for teachers ought to be put in line with the 
performance profiles themselves.  The monies being requested are based on what the Department 
believes would be the number of schools that would need some assistance.  She noted that 
"solution teams" is the legal name, and is not a name that they came up with.  She might agree the 
term is a little presumptuous as the Chair was suggesting.  This is not the Department's term, it is 
the legal term in the law. 
 
In reference to Senator Rios' comment about Proposition 203 and the concerns about LEP 
students, Ms. Keegan said the Department is undergoing a cost study.  As Senator Rios may 
know, there were no bidders on the first cost study.  The Department is on an expedited program 
right now and would like to have this completed by the end of April, so that they have a figure for 
the Legislature.  The Department will go as quickly as possible, so that they have some idea of 
what the cost is going to be.  
 
Ms. Keegan said the Department did in fact support the elimination of a couple of programs.  She 
said it is important to focus on major initiatives.  To answer Senator Nichols' question, Ms. Keegan 
said she wants to make sure it is clear that charter schools do have special education obligations.  
Every obligation that any charter school has must be served, and they do serve special education 
kids, or the Department will go after them like they would any school that does not serve the kids. 
  
With regard to State Land funds, Ms. Keegan said Proposition 301 does state that any amount of 
money generated by the State Land Trust over $73 million will supplement public education.  So it 
does matter now a great deal how that State Land Trust is handled.  There were other 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

15

considerations having to do with preservation and the beauty of that land, but as the fiduciary of 
that land trust, it matters to her even more so, and she is pleased that it passed.   
 
Ms. Keegan corrected the figure of Group B children in Arizona by stating that it is about 10 
percent of the student population.  That has actually come down a small amount.  Ms. Keegan 
agreed to provide the exact figures for Committee members. 
 
In reference to Ms. Keegan's comments, Senator Nichols asked if this meant the State would not 
see the words "offset" any more for state land trust versus general fund because of Proposition 
301.  Ms. Keegan said no, it means that the offset will be a consistent  $73 million.   
 
Senator Nichols asked if the State would no longer be doing offsetting over $73 million, but a 
supplemental.  Ms. Keegan said that is the law. 
 
With the issue of extra school days, Senator Nichols said he seems to remember that Arizona is 
well behind other developed countries and certainly other parts of this country, in terms of the 
number of days of education we offer per year.  Ms. Keegan said yes, the numbers in the United 
States are an average of 182 days per year.  Most industrialized nations now attend around 220 
per year.   
 
Senator Nichols asked if one of the objects of Proposition 301 was to gradually get the State closer 
to the United States average. Ms. Keegan said certainly that would have been her intention, and 
Senator Nichols is correct that five days at the end of five years would be added.  
 
Senator Nichols said he is trying to understand the amount of time we take in accountability 
testing.  He believes in accountability and believes that everyone does, it is very important in 
education as in any other field.  He asked how many days are spent by the students each year in 
testing, how many today, and how many will be spent when AIMS was fully implemented.  Ms. 
Keegan said AIMS has been fully implemented as of last spring, for the topics that they are now 
testing for.  Ms. Keegan said she would get Senator Nichols and all the members information after 
this hearing.  Part of the information will be a time sheet for how long the tests take.  She said for 
first grade they propose 85 minutes.  In the second grade through the ninth grade it is a Stanford 9 
only and it would take about two and half to three hours.  The AIMS test is untimed.  In the grade 
schools it generally takes about five to six hours.  In the high schools, it takes about eight hours to 
get all three topics that are tested individually.  She pointed out that the high school test is an 
extremely different test.  She asked the members if she could use this opportunity to beg the 
Legislature not to be tempted to use the AIMS test as a "barrier" test.  She said the Department 
has a lot of desire not to engage in social promotions, and she shares that desire.  The elementary 
school AIMS tests were not developed as barrier exams.  The high school exam was developed 
specifically as a high school graduation exam to be taken numerous times.  It is a different test 
than the test being developed for the elementary schools.  She will provide specific numbers at a 
later date. 
  
Senator Nichols said his foster daughter took both the AIMS and the Stanford 9 test last year.  
When she got back from the AIMS test, she told him that it took two days for her to complete the 
exam.  He said if indeed the State is adding testing time and school days, the State might just end 
up where we started.  He asked if the State is really getting ahead in terms of education.  Ms. 
Keegan noted that in Senator Nichols' other life he is a doctor, and that she does not hear anyone 
complaining to a doctor that they are taking far too much time with this diagnosis business.  She 
said we need to know what is going on, and thinks that it is a very judicious expenditure of time to 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

16

take a few hours out of 175 days.  She commented that with all due respect, there is a lot of 
activities going on in school, and believes there is sufficient time to get these tests in. She said that 
Senator Nichols' daughter would absolutely have taken the AIMS test over two days.  It is heavy in 
the years where they are using both tests. We have to make sure it is a wise expenditure, but she 
believes that we are making our best efforts to do that.   
 
Senator Solomon said when we look at the time that is being discussed with regard to testing, we 
also have to look at the prep time.  She said Tucson has done well with their AIMS scores and 
improvements were made in Stanford 9.  Part of that is the fact that students were taught how to 
take the test, schools are working on test taking skills and that is all part of the test taking time.  So 
the number of hours go far beyond the actual seat time during the test. If the State uses the tests 
the way it is supposed to, they are wonderful teaching tools. 
 
Senator Cirillo asked Ms. Keegan if she would not agree that the voters gave the State a "complete 
message" with the passage of the Proposition, that not enough money had been put into 
education.  The voters want to be assured that the kids are coming out of high school learning 
what they should have learned and being able to take a job.  They also endorsed the fact that the 
State needs accountability in testing.  Ms. Keegan said yes, absolutely. Ms. Keegan agreed that 
there is a lot of prepping for a test and most of that has to do with teaching this material.  The State 
is going to have the ability to stay accountable for whether we challenged our kids, and the vast 
majority of our educators are about the business of doing that.  Arizona is seen as one of the 
fastest improving academic states in the country.  She believes the public was insistent on that and 
most of the schools welcome that.  
 
With regard to the AIMS test, Senator Verkamp said Ms. Keegan mentioned the "tempest in the ink 
pot," which he thinks is a good term.  He said that because of that tempest, he is confused as to 
the status of the AIMS test.  He asked Ms. Keegan if she could give the Committee a clear picture 
of what subjects are being tested in what year under the AIMS test. Ms. Keegan said in grades 3, 5 
and 8, they began last spring testing reading, writing, and mathematics. She said it is important to 
know that the Department develops new forms all the time.  They started in the spring of 1999 for 
the first time with a real AIMS test.  All students were tested in reading, writing and math. It is very 
important to note that every test question on the AIMS test has to be verified. Field testing is very 
expensive, but it is the right thing to do.  They do not want a test that is going to get a different 
response from a group of Hispanic, Black or Anglo kids.  The questions should elicit the same 
curve in all groups of students, and it is technically difficult to do.  They started in the spring of 
1999, the kids took that test again in the spring of 2000.  The scores were compared and there 
was significant improvement.  The students retook the writing test last fall.  The students will retake 
reading, writing, and math again this spring.  And from now on the tests will be available in the 
spring and in the fall in reading, writing, and math.  All students start taking the tests as 10th 
graders and they take them until they pass.  They at least have five opportunities to take these 
tests if they need to, the spring of their sophomore year, the fall of their junior year, spring of their 
junior year, and fall and spring of their senior year. Seventy-three percent of the students who are 
sitting as juniors have passed the writing test, in reading 68 percent of the students have passed, 
and in mathematics 16 percent of the students have passed.  It is important to note that there will 
be a new test this spring.  A number of questions that they released to the newspaper are those 
questions that they determined were not within the scope of what they wanted to test. She thinks 
that they pushed a little bit hard on that math test at first, and she takes responsibility for that, so 
the test was revised.  With the new test this spring, she expects there will be better scores because 
the math instruction has changed. 
 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

17

Senator Verkamp asked about Ms. Keegan's comments that were published in a recent news 
article about schools having $500 million in excess monies available.  He has received comments 
from his district saying, "first we were asked to vote for Proposition 301 because the schools do not 
have enough money, and as soon as we pass it, we find out that the schools have $500 million in 
excess money."  He said they are a little upset about that.  He asked if she could give her 
perspective on these comments.   
 
Ms. Keegan said that this money is outside the classroom. It has been her observation that the 
teachers know much more about solving this problem than the State is allowing them to 
demonstrate.  We should start focusing on getting more money into the classroom and having 
mentor teachers who are doing actual training all the time.  There are teachers out there who 
would be perfectly fit to do that, many of them are doing it now for nothing.  She still believes that 
Proposition 301 was absolutely merited and needed.  She thinks there is a certain amount of 
money the Legislature ought to be expending and they are not yet there at the school level.  
Teachers ought to be paid much more than they are right now.  
 
Senator Verkamp asked Ms. Keegan if they money has been committed for certain projects or is 
this money just not being used.  Ms. Keegan said it looks like the latter, $500 million is a 
conservative calculation, the actual figure is $1.2 billion, and there are certain funds that rotate and 
revolve.  
 
Senator Nichols said the State goes to the voters and asks for over $400 million.  Then we say we 
have $500 million that is not being well used, which would appear to be a logical disconnect.  He 
raised the question initially with Ms. Nazary before of the apparent logical disconnect between 
getting money for inflation and using it for Group B weights.  He said he heard Ms. Keegan state 
that if a student did not pass the AIMS test the first go-around, which takes a couple of days, then 
they retake it in the spring and the fall, then in the following spring.  He asked if it is possible that 
the students are spending all of their time taking the AIMS test.  How many days of the year is a 
student, who presumably needs more instruction because they are not doing well, going to spend 
taking tests to prove that they are doing well.  He commented that this is a logical disconnect.   
 
Ms. Keegan said she would disagree.  She believes that the students will spend less time retaking 
this test than they will spend on field trips.  She said one could not sit and simply take the test 
repeatedly, the test takes two to four days in high school, depending on how it is given. She thinks 
it will be shorter now because of the math test, but says that it takes four days, and only a couple 
of hours on each of the four days, never the full day.  This will only happen one time during the 
spring and during the fall.  
 
Senator Nichols said this is very helpful.  He is glad to hear it from the State Superintendent that 
those additional days are going for, in part, testing and not additional instruction days. Ms. Keegan 
believes it would be a misrepresentation of her opinion to say that those days were added for 
testing only.  It is recognition that the State does spend some time in testing, so Senator Nichols 
would be mischaracterizing what she believes. 
 
Senator Cirillo said when Proposition 301 was being formulated in the Legislature, he was one of 
the people who was "beating the drum" to ensure that a "good chunk" of the money would go 
directly to the school rather than the school board.  It would seem that if the State is trying to 
accomplish what Ms. Keegan is talking about, then they ought to still be pushing to do that.  He 
asked Ms. Keegan for her opinion on this.  Ms. Keegan said this money goes straight to the school 
and she realizes that there is some discussion about that, but the Legislature meant to set a 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

18

precedent.  She reminded the Committee that this $1.2 billion in surplus is not a new figure.  The 
Superintendent's annual report that has been available on the website for some time.  Hopefully, 
people will take advantage of it.  She is simply making a comment that Proposition 301 require that 
money go to the school site and Senator Cirillo certainly was "beating that drum," as the 
Department was. The Department can account for that with SAIS.  She thinks it would do all of 
them well to take a look at where that money is for schools now and to ensure that the bulk of it is 
at schools.  She never believed that strictly the money in Proposition 301 would be enough at the 
school site itself.  
 
Senator Solomon referred back to the issue that Senator Verkamp raised with regard to the excess 
money.  She asked if these monies would be part of the balance carried forward for schools.  Ms. 
Keegan said that some of the $1.2 billion is a balance carried forward, which is why she is using 
the figure $500 million. There are also carry forwards particularly on Indian reservation, that are 
prohibited from spending because of expenditure limitations and yet they raise a great deal more. 
  
Senator Solomon said it would be helpful for each of the Committee members to see a break down 
of that $1.5 billion and particularly a break down of the $500 million.  She is curious to know how 
much of that is balance carry forward for school districts.  She does know that it is critical that they 
have that balance carry forward, they use that to fund salary increases. Ms. Keegan agreed to 
provide the members the information. 
 
Ms. Keegan pointed out that when the Superintendent's report was brought forward this year, they 
noted there would be a break down in costs. In about a month, the members as well as the public 
and press, will know where that money actually goes.  She said to some extent, a carry forward 
could be used for salaries.  She would think that this would be an exceptional use, and thinks that 
most of this money ought to be spent in salaries. The self-report from the schools themselves is 
nowhere close.  In a number of instances it is as low as 40 to 50 percent.  She said this is a 
concern and the State needs to ask some questions. 
  
Senator Solomon said there were years when her husband was a principal at an elementary 
school in Tucson, that when the end of the fiscal year was approaching, he was told to spend it or 
send it back.  She said he was not into frivolous spending, he wanted to use the money for 
planning and for appropriate use.  She knows that from the discussions around their dinner table 
this balance carry forward is very important in doing a budget planning. 
 
Ms. Keegan informed the Committee that the President of the State Board of Education was 
present and would like to add further comments.   
 
Janet Martin, President, State Board of Education, said it was a pleasure to address the 
Committee and thanked the Committee for their support in their education initiatives. She 
explained the State Board of Education is a nine-member board established by the Arizona 
Constitution whose powers and duties are set forth in state statute, and operates as a separate 
agency from the Department of Education.  That recommendation assigns a budget cost center to 
the Board separate from the budget of the ADE.  She pointed out that this is not an attempt to 
create a new state agency, as the Board is already an agency formed by the Constitution, nor is it 
an attempt to significantly increase the budget of the Board.  The most significant benefit of 
establishing a call center for the Board is in the area of strategic planning.  Currently, the Board, as 
a subprogram under ADE, does not have the flexibility to set its own missions, goals and 
performance measures.  The goals, objectives and performance measures must be based upon 
the missions set by the Superintendent of Public Instruction for ADE.  The Board has the desire to 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

19

take responsibility for that.  Some of the services that are under the direction of the Board and 
under the able administration of their Executive Administrator, Corinne Velasquez, are the 
investigations unit, teacher testing, certification, charter schools, charter schools auditing, career 
ladders, and an evaluation of teacher preparation programs.  The OSPB recommendation moves 
certain program areas directly under the Board, which is operationally in effect now.  In addition, 
OSPB recommends funding for the investigation unit and for monitoring of charter schools.  The 
Board is asking the Committee for their consideration and support of OSPB's budget 
recommendation related to the Board. 
 
Senator Solomon called for a short recess at 10:25 a.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10:32 a.m. 
 
BUDGET PRESENTATION ON THE SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD 
 
Patrick Fearon, Budget Analyst, JLBC, gave a brief overview of the capital financing process.   
Three main funds that are used to finance the school capital facilities are the new school facilities 
fund, the building renewal fund, and the deficiencies corrections fund.  The new school facilities 
fund is for new capital needs that go along with growth.  Building renewal is essentially for major 
repairs and renovations meant to extend the life of the capital facilities.  Deficiency corrections are 
used to literally correct the deficiencies that have been discovered in the assessment process.  
The School Facilities Board (SFB) makes a report to the Joint Committee on Capital Review 
(JCCR) in December of each year to report on the future needs will be for these funds.  By January 
1st of each year the State Treasurer is instructed to transfer transaction privilege taxes to these 
funds in an amount necessary to properly fund them.  Mr. Fearon distributed a handout entitled FY 
2002 - FY 2003 Comparison of Major Policy Issues School Facilities Board (Attachment E).  The 
bulk of his testimony is based on this handout. 
 
Mr. Fearon covered the following major policy issues for the School Facilities Board: 
 

• Total Budget (SFB - 1) 
• Operating Budget (SFB - 2) 
• New School Facilities (SFB - 2) 
• Building Renewal (SFB - 3) 
• Deficiencies Correction (SFB - 4) 

 
*Note: The page numbers in parenthesis refer to the page numbers listed in the FY2002-FY2003 
JLBC Recommendations booklet. 
 
Senator Cirillo asked if the difference of $120 million in the first year and the second year would 
have any impact on the ability of SFB to accomplish their mission.  They have a plan to do so 
much in year one and year two; will that negatively affect that?  Mr. Fearon said with the $120 
million and theoretically up to $800 million in revenue bonds available in fiscal year 2002, one 
could end up with a large amount of money.  As to the actual relationship to the projected project 
schedule, he would think that the agency would be best suited to answer that. 
 
Dawn Nazary, Budget Analyst, OSPB, distributed a handout entitled School Facilities Board 
FY2002/2003 Budget Recommendation Select Policy Issues (Attachment F).  Ms. Nazary stated 
there is one issue pertaining to the $160,000 supplemental.  She said on January 22nd the School 
Facilities Board notified the Chairs of the Appropriations Committees that the agency would 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

20

experience an administrative shortfall in fiscal year 2001 of $160,000.  Due to unanticipated costs 
associated with school assessments required to accurately determine the level of deficiency 
corrections in our schools, the agency has requested this one-time appropriation to support the 
operational costs of the agency.  The department reports that without this assistance they will not 
be able to make their June payroll.  This situation is critical and definitely needs to be addressed. 
 
Senator Solomon agreed this is a very important issue, and there will be a JCCR meeting coming 
up where we hope we can address this issue.  She is not aware whether this meeting has been 
scheduled yet. 
 
Dr. Philip E. Geiger, Executive Director, School Facilities Board, thanked Ms. Nazary and Mr. 
Fearon for their analysis of the School Facilities Board's work.  He said they are spending close to 
$2 billion this year and next year.  Dr. Geiger explained that the Department works with 228 school 
districts and is also working with the School for the Deaf and Blind, which was required to have 
their guidelines set by the School Facilities Board.  Now the school is requesting to be under 
School Facilities Board jurisdiction instead of the Department of Administration.  He noted that 
there is a bill before the Legislature to address that issue as to where they actually belong.   
 
Dr. Geiger said when the School Facilities Board began, there was an expectation that the State 
would take a very long time to start their activity and would function in a more bureaucratic 
approach.  He said if the members have spoken to any of their constituents, they would find that 
school districts believe that the SFB has been very responsive.  SFB has already approved 121 
new schools, 12 have been completed, and 54 are in progress.  They have nearly $1 billion of new 
schools under construction within a year and a half of the Board being established, which is a 
record-breaking time to get things done.  They have also awarded close to $300 million of building 
renewal money, and they are in the process of doing $1.2 billion worth of deficiencies corrections.  
The school districts were notified two weeks ago that they could proceed with almost $300 million 
worth of work. The SFB has hired project management personnel to be sure that the districts use 
this money properly, and that jobs are done on time and under budget. By March, all the districts 
will have been fully assessed, all the analysis completed, and the awards will have been made.  
SFB expects to get done close to June 30, 2003, and the only thing that would prevent them from 
finishing on time would be the ability of the school districts to get their work accomplished, and the 
conditions of the construction market. He said 30 percent of their work would be school roofs.  
Their concern is they want to be sure these schools are maintained and that the $1 billion has 
been spent. This is done with 18 people, and they are probably one of the more efficient groups of 
this State to get all this work accomplished.  They communicate with the 228 school districts, all 
their architects and engineers, and their schools boards with a staff of 18.  About 10 of the 18 are 
people who engage directly with the school districts. 
 
Senator Verkamp said one of the concerns that he had about Students First.  Most of the new 
schools were going to be built in the East Valley, and not too many schools were going to be built 
in Flagstaff, Sedona, Kingman, and other places like that.  He asked where the news schools were 
being built and where all the building renewal monies are being spent.  Dr. Geiger said he has a 
package that has all the information for every district.  He said he would be happy to provide this 
information for the Committee this afternoon.   
 
Dr. Geiger added that the Committee would find that a tremendous amount of the Department's 
work is in the rural communities, because a lot of those schools were in such bad condition, they 
had to be replaced.  So there were a lot of replacement schools that were originally awarded right 
out of the "box" when the School Facilities Board first started. The Department is replacing many 



Committee on Appropriations 
January 30, 2001 

21

rural schools because of the lack of facilities and funds that the rural communities have had, and 
the inability to raise any taxes for bonding to improve those facilities. 
 
Senator Solomon thanked Dr. Geiger for his presentation. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:50 a.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Melissa C. Upshaw, Committee Secretary 
 
 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate's Office/Resource Center, Room 
115.) 
 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


